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which there's no ob j e c t i o n be admitted. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Do you object t o 

MR. BROOKS: There was no ob j e c t i o n t o Mr. Sanchez' 

testimony, so i t ' s p a r t of the hearing at t h i s p o i n t . Anyway, 

Mr. Sanchez has t e s t i f i e d without o b j e c t i o n , so there's no 

question at t h i s p oint --

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s p o i n t i n time, I'm not going 

to bother. I ' l l j u s t know f o r the next hearing t h a t I need t o 

c a l l them as witnesses. 

But I would move f o r the admission of C, D and E. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no o b j e c t i o n to t h a t . 

MR. WARNELL: Okay. E x h i b i t s C, D and E w i l l be 

admitted. 

[Applicant's E x h i b i t s C, D and E admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. WARNELL: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Would you l i k e me to c a l l my f i r s t 

witness? 

MR. WARNELL: Yes. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I'd l i k e to c a l l Ronald St. John. 

RONALD ST. JOHN 

a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 
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1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

3 Q. Would you please state your name f o r the record, 

4 please. 

5 A. Ronald St. John. 

6 Q- And where do you reside? 

•1 A. Midland, Texas. 

8 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

9 A. Xeric O i l and Gas. 

10 Q • In what capacity? 

11 A. I'm overseeing f i e l d operations. 

12 Q - Have you previously t e s t i f i e d before the 

13 Division? 

14 A. No. 

15 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r with the a p p l i c a t i o n that's been 

16 f i l e d by the Di v i s i o n i n t h i s case? 

17 A. Not r e a l l y , no. 

18 Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the status of the 

19 lands and the wells that Xeric owns? 

20 A. Yes . 

21 Q. Mr. St. John, when d i d you and your partners 

22 acquire Xeric O i l and Gas Corporation? 

23 A. I t was A p r i l the 5th, I believe, was the c l o s i n g 

24 date. 

25 Q. A p r i l or March? 
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A. Or March 5t.h, I'm s o r r y . 

Q. When d i d OCD f i l e t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n , do you know? 

A. I t h i n k i t was March t h e 5 t h , t h e day we c l o s e d 

on the l e a s e . 

Q. Why d i d you buy X e r i c and i t s assets? 

A. We bought i t because we t h i n k t h e r e ' s upside t o 

the p r o p e r t i e s t h a t t hey had owned. I t was p r e t t y much -- had 

been n e g l e c t e d . We f e e l l i k e the o p e r a t i o n s i n the past on 

these p r o p e r t i e s was p o o r l y done and done by non-prudent 

o p e r a t o r s . We j u s t f e l t t h a t we c o u l d p r o b a b l y do something 

w i t h them. 

Q. How d i d you come t o know about these p r o p e r t i e s 

i n New Mexico? 

A. We a c t u a l l y -- I had spent t h e l a s t e i g h t years 

of my career w o r k i n g i n the Rocky Mountains, and I s t a r t e d 

buying assets from X e r i c i n Montana and Wyoming and Colorado, 

and they happened t o mention t o me t h a t t hey had some 

p r o p e r t i e s i n New Mexico. 

Q. So you had a p r e v i o u s r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h X e r i c ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you know the s t a t e or t h e c o n d i t i o n of t h e 

w e l l s t h a t you were a c q u i r i n g ? 

A. We d i d . We d i d . Some of t h e e n v i r o n m e n t a l 

issues weren't f u l l y d i s c l o s e d i n t h e b e g i n n i n g ; however, we 

d i d know i t was p r e t t y much a d i s t r e s s e d p r o p e r t y . 
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1 Q. What d i d you know? You mentioned t h a t t h e y 

2 didn't, d i s c l o s e c e r t a i n e n v i r o n m e n t a l i s s u e s . What d i d you 

3 know about t h e P o a r l Queen #301 w e l l ? 

4 A. The P e a r l Queen #301 p i t -- th e y s a i d t h a t t hey 

5 had s t a r t e d the cleanup process and t h e e n v i r o n m e n t a l cleanup 

6 on i t ; however, i t was s t i l l p r o b a b l y i n t h e b e g i n n i n g phases. 

7 And they s a i d t h a t t h e y would go back i n and a c t u a l l y complete 

8 t h a t p r o j e c t . And we f e l t l i k e we were b e t t e r q u a l i f i e d t o 

9 st e p i n and do t h a t , so we d i d . 

LO Q. What was your agreement, though, when you 

11 a c q u i r e d i t ? Were they r e q u i r e d t o c l e a n up t h a t p i t or were 

12 you r e q u i r e d to? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. What i s your h i s t o r y , i f you wouldn't mind 

15 e x p l a i n i n g t o the Examiner a l i t t l e b i t , i n o t h e r s t a t e s i n 

16 terms of a c q u i r i n g w e l l s and b r i n g i n g these k i n d of s t a t e of 

17 w e l l s back i n t o compliance? 

18 A. R i g h t , r i g h t . We bought w e l l s o f f o f X e r i c i n 

19 M u s s e l s h e l l County, Montana and a l s o i n Sweetwater County, 

20 Wyoming -- o f f of X e r i c t h a t were p r e t t y much i n the same 

21 c o n d i t i o n as these w e l l s and these leases -- environment 

22 i s s u e s , p i t s , w e l l s t h a t were i n a s i t u a t i o n where they were t o 

23 be plugged or produced. 

24 We bought those leases and br o u g h t them i n t o 

25 compliance. And t h a t was the h i s t o r y i n the Rockies. One o f 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 1th Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



I 

2 

3 

•1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2 3 

7\ 

2b 

31 

t h e reasons why we purchased t h i s i s we f e l t l i k e we were good 

c a n d i d a t e s t o come i n and do t h i s a l s o . 

Q. The w e l l s t h a t you brought back i n t o compliance 

i n Wyoming, what i s t h e c u r r e n t c o n d i t i o n o f those w e l l s now? 

A. They're i n good s t a n d i n q . A l l w e l l s are 

p r o d u c t i v e w e l l s . E v e r y t h i n g i s i n compliance as f a r as 

en v i r o n m e n t a l i s s u e s . E v e r y t h i n g was p r e t t y much cleaned up. 

Q. Were those f e d e r a l or s t a t e w e l l s ? 

A. They were f e d e r a l . 

Q. And what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h t h e f e d e r a l 

agency t h a t you dea l w i t h ? 

A. The Bureau o f Land Management our the R o l l i n s 

f i e l d o f f i c e ; i s e x c e l l e n t . 

Q. And what about Montana? What a r e the c o n d i t i o n s 

and s t a t e of those w e l l s today? 

A. Those w e l l s , we're i n the pro c e s s . We've got a l l 

the e n v i r o n m e n t a l i s s u e s taken care o f . We're i n the process 

o f c o m p l e t i n g some i n f r a s t r u c t u r e t h a t needed u p d a t i n g , and 

t h e y ' r e , f o r the most p a r t , 90 p e r c e n t complete. 

Q. What i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h t h e those 

r e g u l a t o r y agencies? 

A. Good, r e a l good. 

Q. How many p a r t n e r s or employees make up X e r i c O i l 

and Gas C o r p o r a t i o n i n New Mexico? 

A. Two. 
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1 Q. And who are those? 

A. Myself and Adam H i r s c h f e l d . 

3 Q. And how are your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s divided? 

•] A. Adam H i r s c h f e l d i s more on the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

side. I do a l l the f i e l d operations, oversee f i e l d operations. 

Q. Who does your regulatory work? 

7 A. Adam H i r s c h f e l d . 

8 Q. Since ac q u i r i n g Xeric, what work have you done on 

9 your wells? 

K) A. We repaired some surface mechanical problems 

11 on — there were three wells on the West Pearl Queen u n i t . 

12 While we were doing these repairs and had a l l production 

13 equipment out of trie hole, we d i d some casing -- or some 

1«1 mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t s f o r our own b e n e f i t . We weren't 

15 required to do t h a t . We d i d i t j u s t f o r our own b e n e f i t . 

l«j We d i d one w e l l on the South Pearl Queen. Then we 

17 completed the environmental issues on the reserve p i t on #301. 

18 Q. Has that work been completed on that reserve p i t ? 

19 A. I t has. And there's a c t u a l l y a report t h a t ' s 

20 been d e l i v e r e d to the OCD. 

21 Q. What else are you doing i n New Mexico, c u r r e n t l y ? 

22 A. I'm c u r r e n t l y working on the Crosby and Gregory 

23 leases soutn of J a l , New Mexico. We're g e t t i n g our l o c a t i o n s 

24 prepared to move i n a r i g . And we're also involved with the 

2b BLM, communicating w i t h them on the environmental issues on 
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1 t h a t l i s t . And T r i c i a Badbear i s a c t u a l l y our contact there, 

2 out of the Hobbs f i e l d o f f i c e . 

3 Q. Have you contracted w i t h any environment 

4 companies? 

5 A. We have, Phoenix Environmental. I'm f a i r l y new 

6 to that area, so I'm not r e a l l y f a m i l i a r w i t h a l l the 

7 cont r a c t o r s . I'm kind of g e t t i n g to know them. But Phoenix 

8 Environmental was the one responsible f o r helping us to do the 

9 p i t closure on West Pearl Queen #301. 

10 Q. Mr. St. John, I'd l i k e t o ask you to turn to 

11 what's been marked as E x h i b i t A. I believe t h i s has already 

12 been admitted a c t u a l l y by the OCD. I t ' s t h e i r e x h i b i t as w e l l . 

13 What i s t h i s e x h i b i t ? ^ 

14 A. Is the reserve d r i l l and p i t closure report? 

15 Q. The one before t h a t a c t u a l l y , the one on top. 

16 A. Okay. 

17 Q. What i s thi s ? 

18 A. Oh, t h i s i s the plan of acti o n submitted by Xeric 

19 to the OCD, and i t s p e l l s out the status update and plan of 

20 action and completed task. 

21 Q. Were you present f o r Mr. Sanchez' testimony? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Did you hear his testimony regarding why t h i s 

24 l e t t e r was not s u f f i c i e n t i n t h e i r view? 

25 A. Yes. 

f 
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1 Q. One ot the statements he made was t h a t t h e r e was 

2 i n s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n on t h a t #301 p i t . Do you know i f t h a t 

3 r e p o r t has been s u b m i t t e d t o the OCD? 

4 A. I t has. I t . was h a n d - d e l i v e r e d . A c t u a l l y , two 

5 copies of t h a t were h a n d - d e l i v e r e d t o the Hobbs, New Mexico, 

6 f i e l d o f f i c e . 

7 Q. I n terms o f your t a s k s t h a t are t o be completed, 

8 i f you would please t u r n t o page 2. I t shows you're f o c u s i n g 

9 on the Crosby u n i t ? 

10 A. Yes. That's c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. You t a l k e d a l i t t l e b i t about t h a t . Could you 

12 please j u s t expand on what i t i s t h a t you a c t u a l l y have t o do 

13 b e f o r e you a c t u a l l y get i n t o t h a t u n i t t o do work? 

14 A. The l o c a t i o n s t h i s lease has been TA'd, so t o 

l b speak, f o r s e v e r a l years. I t h i n k s i n c e '05. The l o c a t i o n s 

16 are grown over. We're a c t u a l l y g e t t i n g our l o c a t i o n s ready. 

17 We're t e s t i n g r i g anchors, r e p a i r i n g roads, so we can a c t u a l l y 

18 get i n t o the l o c a t i o n s . I p l a n t o move a r i g i n and do an MIT, 

19 and e i t h e r produce the w e l l s or p l u g them. 

20 Q. What agencies are you ha v i n g t o c o o r d i n a t e w i t h ? 

21 A . I ' m s o r r y ? 

22 Q. What agencies are you ha v i n g t o c o o r d i n a t e w i t h ? 

23 A. Rig companies, p u l l i n g u n i t companies. I'm 

24 c o o r d i n a t i n g once again w i t h Phoenix E n v i r o n m e n t a l , who i s 

2b a c t u a l l y out t h e r e working. They have been f o r the l a s t week. 
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I'm coordinating w i t h the landowner. I t ' s a Mr. George W i l l i s . 

He's the surface owner out there. He's been r e a l cooperative.' 

I'm t r y i n g t o balance that between the BLM, because i t i s 

fe d e r a l -- and Mr. W i l l i s and, of course, I ' l l get the OCD 

involved, also. 

Q. And what has the nature of your discussions been 

w i t h the BLM on those properties? 

A. The BLM i s t h a t there are some issues t h a t need 

to be addressed. We want to address them. We j u s t want t o 

make sure t h a t everybody i s going to pleased w i t h what we're 

going to do. So at t h a t p o i n t , w e ' l l ask t h a t the OCD, the 

BLM, and the surface owner a l l be present when we come up w i t h 

a plan. 

Q. Besides t h i s report t h a t you submitted to the 

OCD, what other contacts have you or members of Xeric had wit h 

the Division? 

A. With the OCD? 

Q. With the OCD. 

A. I a c t u a l l y drove to Hobbs, New Mexico, twice t o 

meet wich Buddy H i l l , because I was informed t h a t he was our 

contact guy there. They have gone to a four-day work week. I 

wasn't aware of t h a t . I drove up on a Friday. Buddy H i l l was 

not there, and so I spoke with another gentleman that j u s t 

t r a n s f e r r e d i n . I believe he's an environmental engineer. His' 

name i s J e f f . 
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So I d i d speak wi t h him, and then so I t h i n k a 

week went by, and I drove back over there on a Monday. And I 

wasn't aware th a t t h e i r four-day work week was wit h r o t a t i n g 

days o f f . So he was o f f on that Monday, but I spoke w i t h a 

Mr. Larry Johnson. And I a c t u a l l y hand-delivered him the 

completed repo r t on the West Pearl Queen #301. 

Q. And have you since made contact with Buddy H i l l ? 

A. I have. I t was a c t u a l l y through the rancher t h a t 

owns the surface on the Crosby and Gregory. Him and Buddy are 

a c t u a l l y f r i e n d s , and I happened to be with the rancher and 

t o l d him I'd been t r y i n g t o 'locate Buddy H i l l , and he made the 

comment he knew him, and he wanted to take me over and 

intx _oduce me, but that was about i t . 

Q.. What i s your plan f o r going forward w i t h 

communicating with the OCD? 

A.. I t ' s my understanding Buddy H i l l i s a c t u a l l y 

promoted. I know Gary Wink's name has come up. Gary Wink i s 

no longer employed with OCD. He's working f o r a p r i v a t e f i r m 

out of Hobbs, New Mexico. And Buddy has been promoted and 

won't be coming to the f i e l d . I don't know who my f i e l d 

contact i s going to be. I would l i k e to know that so I 

coordinate w i t h them and choose one person to a c t u a l l y 

communicate with instead of communicating with several. 

Q. W i l l you follow up with t h a t , though, to t r y to 

determine -•-
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A. I w i l l . I w i l l . 

Q. Were you present for the June meeting that 

Mr. Sanchez t e s t i f i e d about w i t h the D i v i s i o n i n Santa Fe? 

A. I don't t h i n k I was. The June meeting? 

Q. Here i n Santa Fe? 

A. I was i n one other meeting w i t h Mikal, and t h a t 

was i t . I don't remember. I t h i n k i t might have been i n June. 

Q. Okay. And what took place at that meeting? 

A. We j u s t t a l k e d about what we are going t o do as 

far as submitting a plan of ac t i o n , what Xeric's i n t e n t i o n s 

were i n b r i n g i n g the wells i n t o compliance, and a reasonable 

amount of t^me to do t h a t . 

Q. I believe one of your partners, Mr. C o l l i e r , was 

present during that meeting? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , yes. 

Q. And as Mr. Sanchez t e s t i f i e d t o , d i d he make 

c e r t a i n representations at that meeting? 

A. He d i d . 

Q. And as t a r as you know, were those promises kept? 

A. No. 

Q. What i s Mr. C o l l i e r doing now? 

A. He i s no longer with Xeric O i l and Gas. 

Q. Where were you during t h i s period of time between 

June and t h i s hearing i n terms of your focus on the New Mexico 

properties ? 
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1 A. I was doing what we had here as fa r as p u l l i n g 

the wel.s on the West Pearl Queen, the South Pearl Queen, and 

3 doing the p i t reclamation on #301. 

4 Q. Were you aware of tha t Mr. C o l l i e r had not kept 

5 his promises? 

S A. I was not. 

7 Q. What d i d you do when you found out that t h a t 

3 didn't happen? 

9 A. We immediately stepped in and started zo 

10 communicate with you, and we understood t h a t he didn't do what 

IL we t o l d the OCD we'd do. 

12 Q. Through your discussions w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

13 and the Santa Fe o f f i c e , what d i d you understand the p r i o r i t i e s 

14 of the OCD to be i n terms of g e t t i n g your wells back i n t o 

15 compliance and addressing any environmental issues? 

Lo A. We were j u s t supposed to coordinate with the OCD, 

17 keep them i n the loop on what we were doing, when we were doing 

18 i t , so that the f i e l d o f f i c e could a c t u a l l y come i n and v e r i f y 

19 we were doing what we said we were doing. 

20 Q. What was the f i r s t b i t of work that you took on 

21 when you came to New Mexico? 

22 A. The West Pearl Queen #301 p i t . 

23 Q. When you tal k e d to the d i s t r i c t , o f f i c e , what d i d 

24 they t e i l you about th a t p i t ? 

2!) A. They said that p i t was a sore subject, that i t 
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had been on the books and everybody, i n c l u d i n g Mikal, and 

anybody who had to the f i e l d o f f i c e i n Hobbs, t h a t t h a t was 

p r e t t y much the place that they took them to show what a 

non-prudent operator does. And tha t was my understanding, so 

we f e l t l i k e t h a t would be the best place to s t a r t . 

Q. Would you please t u r n t o what's been marked as 

Xeric E x h i b i t B? 

A. Okay. 

Q. What i s t h i s ? 

A. That i s a completion report f o r the reserve 

d r i l l i n g p i t closure on West Pearl Queen #301. 

Q. Would you tur n t o the f o u r t h page i n E x h i b i t B. 

What i s tha t document? 

A. This i s r e g i s t r a t i o n or closure f o r Xeric O i l and 

Gas signed by Nick Hood. 

Q. And what was that dated? 

A. That was dated 4/21 of '06. 

Q. Would you tur n to the next page and i d e n t i f y t h i s 

f o r the Examiner. 

A. This i s an inspection d e t a i l by the OCD. 

Q. And when i s t h i s dated? 

A. That was dated -- received A p r i l l l t h of '06. 

Q. Would you f l i p another couple of pages to three 

pages a f t e r t h a t . At the top of the l e t t e r , i t says Phoenix 

Environmental. 
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A. Okay. 

Q. What i s t h i s page? 

A. This i s a work plan to clean up the West Pearl 

Queen u n i t #301, but t h i s i s -- a c t u a l l y , i t i s addressed to 

Xeric O i l and Gas, a t t e n t i o n Mr. Nick Hood. These are the 

previous owners of Xeric. 

Q.. And when i s t h a t dated? 

A,. A p r i l 21st of 2006. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I'm going to object at t h i s p o i n t . 

This w e l l i s not an issue i n t h i s hearing. I don't know why 

we're a c t u a l l y going i n t o i t at t h i s p o i n t . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: The assertion i s t h a t Xeric has not 

done anything to bring any of t h e i r wells i n t o compliance and 

any of t h e i r environmental issues. And t h i s i s to show not 

only what the p r i o r i t y of the D i v i s i o n was, but what they've 

been focusing on. I t also goes to show t h a t Xeric immediately 

came i n as new owners and s t a r t e d working i n New Mexico. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Ac t u a l l y , the a s s e r t i o n i s that they 

haven't done anything to b r i n g t h e i r wells i n t o compliance with 

Rules 101(B) or 201. The environmental issues are addressed i n 

a separate ac t i o n t h a t i s not being addressed i n today's 

hearing. 

MR. BROOKS: This i s a relevance o b j e c t i o n and i s 

e n t i r e l y d i s c r e t i o n a r y t o the presiding Examiner. 

MR. WARNELL: I th i n k that because i t i s a hearing, 
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we ought to probably continue. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I ' l l get through i t q u i c k l y , 

Mr. Examiner. 

Q. {By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. St. John, i f you would 

please, then, t u r n another couple of pages to another r e p o r t 

from Phoenix Environmental, LLC. What i s t h i s document? 

A. This i s also a work plan to clean up the West 

Pearl Queen u n i t #301. 

Q. And when i s t h i s dated? 

A. This i s dated A p r i l 15th of 2008. 

Q. And then could you turn to the page -- at the top 

of i t , i t says page 14 of 27? 

A. 14 of 27. 

Q. Yes, s i r . Explain what t h i s page i n d i c a t e s to 

the Examiner. 

A. This i s a step-by-step procedure f o r cleaning the 

p i t . 

Q. Was t h i s completed on that p i t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And Mr. St. John, when d i d you say t h i s r e p o r t 

was submitted to the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. I t was submitted — I'm not sure. I t h i n k i t was. 

three weeks ago. I believe I hand-delivered i t to Hobbs. 

Q. Do you know why the delay between when the work 

was a c t u a l l y completed and the report was submitted to the 
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d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes. That was part of the agreement with Phoenix 

Environmental. They were a l i t t l e slow on g e t t i n g t h e i r 

completion report completed. 

Q. Okay. Mr. St. John, l e t ' s turn to what X e r i c 1 s 

long-range goals f o r i t s wells i n New Mexico are? 

A. Okay. 

Q. What i s your plan f o r b r i n g i n g your wells i n t o 

compliance w i t h OCD rules? 

A. We're going on a we l l - b y - w e l l , lease-by-lease 

basis. The leases were a c t u a l l y -- most of them were a c t u a l l y 

s h u t - i n , and had been sh u t - i n t o r years. temporarily abandoned. temporarily abandoned. 

The sur face equipment -- the i n d i v i d u a l wells are a l l p r e t t y 

much overgrown and j u s t there hadn't been anything done over 

there. 

So we're -- r i g h t now, an example i s , we're working 

on the Crosby and Gregory lease, which i s a federal lease. 

We're s t a r t i n g to go i n and recondition our surface equipment. 

We'll be moving i n a workover r i g soon, probably w i t h i n the 

next week, depending on r i g a v a i l a b i l i t y . I've been i n contact 

w i t h the r i g company. 

And w e ' l l be going to each i n d i v i d u a l w e l l doing 

i n t e g r i t y t e s t s on the casing, evaluating what s t i m u l a t i o n jobs 

need to be done on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r well t o put i t back on 

production. 
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Q. Are these wells --

A. Either that or plugged. 

Q. I'm sorry. Are these wells i n secondary recovery 

phase? 

A. Some of them are, yes. We'll be implementing a 

waterflood s i t u a t i o n on those. 

Q. Mr. Sanchez t e s t i f i e d t h a t they were.seeking an 

Agreed Compliance Order to manage your i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t . 

Would you be w i l l i n g to enter i n t o such a compliance order 

s e t t i n g dates f o r b r i n g i n g a l l your wells back i n t o compliance? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. You'd be w i l l i n g to have those discussions with' 

the D i v i s i o n to determine the cor r e c t number of wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. This i s an obvious question, but what are your 

thoughts on the c i v i l penalty t h a t Mr. Sanchez i s asking f o r , 

the $88,000? 

A. Well, I don't t h i n k i t ' s f a i r , because we have 

made an honest attempt. We d i d work on four w e l l s . We di d 

clean up an environmental s i t u a t i o n that had been on the books 

fo r over f i v e years. That i n i t s e l f was an accomplishment. I 

thin k there's more that can be done; however, we've only owned 

i t since March. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t testimony, 

Mr. Warnell. 
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• 1 We would move i n t o evidence Xeric E x h i b i t s A and B. 

2 MR. WARNELL: Exhibits A and B w i l l be admitted. 

3 MS. ALTOMARE: Ac t u a l l y , I would object t o the 

4 admission of E x h i b i t B, on the basis t h a t i t ' s not relevant t o 

5 t h i s proceeding. 

6 MR. BROOKS: Again, the decision i s d i s c r e t i o n a r y 

7 where i t ' s a relevance o b j e c t i o n . 

8 MS. ALTOMARE: I t ' s also incomplete, although i t ' s 

9 complete as i t was submitted to the OCD. I t ' s missing page 13. 

10 I t ' s incomplete. 

11 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I don't t h i n k t h a t t h a t missing page, 

12 i f i t ' s i n there, which I apologize f o r , I don't know where i t 

13 went. But I don't t h i n k --

14 MS. ALTOMARE: I t was a c t u a l l y submitted as an 

15 , incomplete report to the OCD i n tha t fashion, but i t i s 

16 a c t u a l l y a s i g n i f i c a n t page of the r e p o r t . 

17 MR. WARNELL: Could you provide us, Ms. Munds-Dry --

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We w i l l c e r t a i n l y provide page 13, 

19 yes. 

20 MR. WARNELL: When we get page 13, we w i l l submit 

21 E x h i b i t B. We'll accept E x h i b i t A. 

22 [Respondent's E x h i b i t A admitted i n t o evidence.] 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t testimony 

24 f o r Mr. St. John. Pass the witness. 

25 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

bOO 4t'n Street, NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



45 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. St. John, you were not involved i n the 

telephone conference that took place i n A p r i l ; i s that r i g h t ? 

A. No. 

Q. But Mr. C o l l i e r was speaking on behalf of Xeric 

at that p o i n t i n time? 

A. Yes, he was. 

Q. What was his p o s i t i o n at that time? 

A. Mr. C o l l i e r was a c t u a l l y an o f f i c e r of Xeric O i l 

and Gas. 

Q. What was his s p e c i f i c p o s i t i o n ? 

A. He was a c t u a l l y president. 

Q. And why i s i t . he's no longer involved? 

A. He had other agendas, and we didn' t f e e l l i k e 

t h a t once we found out that ne wasn't communicating with 

OCD, that was un s a t i s f a c t o r y f o r us, so he was p r e t t y much l e t 

go. 

Q. Okay. But at both meetings that were held, tne 

one i n A p r i l by telephone and the one i n June, he was at t h a t 

point i n time a c t i n g on behalf of Xeric O i l and Gas? 

A. He was. 

Q. Okay. You do understand th a t Xeric i s a 

corporation, that by purchasing -- or a company becoming 

involved i n Xeric, you are becoming involved i n a corporation? 
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A. Uh-huh, yes. 

Q. And that the same laws that protect you as an 

individual from liability for actions of the corporation make 

you liable for the actions of the corporation as a whole? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, I'm going tc object. 

This i s c a l l i n g f o r a l e g a l answer that I don't believe Mr. St. 

John i s q u a l i f i e d to answer. 

MS. ALTOMARE: The respondents are making the 

argument t h a t they are not responsible f o r the h i s t o r y of t h i s 

company, but they came i n and took over t h i s company knowing 

the h i s t o r y of i t . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s what they're 

asserting at a l l . I t h i n k they are saying t h a t they knew what 

they were g e t t i n g i n t o , and they're doing t h e i r best t o r e c t i f y 

the s i t u a t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: Well, I th i n k the question wasn't r e a l 

clear, but i t ' s not being o f f e r e d f o r the purpose of proving 

what the law i s , but f o r the purpose of proving the witness' 

knowledge, so I would recommend that the Examiner overrule the 

ob j e c t i o n . I f the witness doesn't understand the question, he 

can ask fo r c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

MR. WARNELL: Overruled. Restate your question. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): You understand, though, the 

dynamics of buying i n t o a company and becoming an o f f i c e r i n a 

company? 
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A. I do. I do. 

Q. And as a savvy businessman, you research your 

purchases before you make them? 

A. We t r y t o . 

0. Okay. What kind of research d i d you do on Xeric 

O i i and Gas i n New Mexico p r i o r to making the decision to 

become involved i n New Mexico? 

A. The due d i l i g e n c e process was p r e t t y b r i e f here 

because I was s t i l l l i v i n g i n the Rockies. But we d i d -- we 

were aware that there were problems. 

Q. Okay. Did you review well f i l e s e i t h e r through 

the OCD or through Xeric's own in-house f i l e s ? 

A. We di d . 

Q. What i s your current o f f i c i a l t i t l e ? I t h i n k you 

might have already said t h i s , but. --

A. I oversee f i e l d operations and I'm also VP. 

Q. VP, and that would make Mr. H i r s c h f e l d the 

president ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Wnat r o l e does Mr. King, the former president or 

owner, c u r r e n t l y play? 

A. He does not have a role i n our organization. 

0. Is he s t i l l signing o f f on any reports that are 

being submitted to OCD? 

A. He di d , but not with our approval. He e v i d e n t l y 
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1 turned i n some sundry notices -- a c t u a l l y on the Crosby and 

Greqory leases, the leases I'm doing now. We f i l e d amended 

3 sundries on that s t a t i n g t h a t Mr. King i s no longer -- he never 

4 has been w i t h the new owners of Xeric. 

b Q. Okay. So you t e s t i f i e d that March bth was the 

6 closing date. So since then i t ' s been t r a n s f e r r e d i n t o you, 

7 Mr. Hi r s c h f e l d , and at the time, Mr. C o l l i e r ? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 G. Are you aware th a t as an operator i n New Mexico, 

10 you're o b l i g a t e d to comply with New Mexico O i l Conservation 

11 D i v i s i o n r u l i n g s for operating wells i n New Mexico? 

12 A. Uh-huh. 

13 Q. Did you take any steps to f a m i l i a r i z e yourself 

14 with the r u l e s of New Mexico? 

15 A. We're somewhat f a m i l i a r . We're s t i l l learning 

16 them. 

17 Q. Did you at any point consider contacting the O i l 

18 Conservation D i v i s i o n to f i n d out what you might need to do to 

19 make sure t h a t you were on the up-and-up und to make sure you 

20 were operating according to OCD rules? 

21 A. That was a c t u a l l y Mr. C o l l i e r ' s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

22 1 was busy i n the f i e l d at the time, but i t ' s now my 

23 r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

24 Q. When did you become aware that the a p p l i c a t i o n 

2 3 had been f i l e d by the OCD? 
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A. What app l i c a t i o n ? 

Q. The a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s matter? 

A. I guess the day th a t we purchased the we l l s . 

I s n ' t that the day you f i l e d i t ? 

Q. The date.we f i l e d i t , but when d i d you personally 

become aware t h a t there was an acti o n pending against Xeric? 

A. This may not be accurate. I'm going t o say 

60 days ago. 

Q. Do you know when your partners became aware of 

i t ? 

A. I'm not sure. 

Q. How d i d i t come t o be tha t Mr. C o l l i e r took p a r t 

i n t h a t A p r i l 15th telephone conference? 

A. How d i d i t come to be th a t he took par t i n the 

telephone conference? 

Q. Yeah, on A p r i l 15th. How d i d he know to meet 

wit h Mr. King and c a l l our o f f i c e s to discuss the pending 

matter? 

A. He must have discussed that w i t h Mr. King, and. i t 

was his understanding there may have been a problem or an 

issue. 

Q. Okay. When did Xeric O i l and Gas take steps t o 

update the new contact information w i t h the O i l Conservation 

Division? 

A. When d i d Xeric take --
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Q. When d i d you a l l update your new contact 

information with the O i l Conservation Division? 

A. That was done by a d m i n i s t r a t i o n . I'm not sure. 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d i s here. H e ' l l have those dates. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l ever seeing a l e t t e r that was sent 

out i n A p r i l to a l l operators t h a t were c u r r e n t l y i n v i o l a t i o n 

of the new f i n a n c i a l assurance requirements advising you that 

Xeric was i n v i o l a t i o n of those requirements? 

A. I d i d not personally see the l e t t e r . My capacity 

i n the company at that time was at the f i e l d l e v e l , but once 

aqain, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d i s here. He can probably answer t h a t . 

Q. Did you at any point become aware of what had 

occurred at the A p r i l 15th telephone conference with 

Mr. C o l l i e r , Mr. King and the OCD? 

A. I was not there. 

Q. Did Mr. C o l l i e r at any point discuss i t w i t h you? 

A. He said that there was some environmental issues 

p e r t a i n i n g t o the p i t #301. I knew there was some -- he j u s t 

had mentioned t h a t there was some environmentcil issues that 

needed to be addressed. But outside of t h a t , that's --

Q. Okay. So you weren't aware of the representation 

and assurances made by Mr. C o l l i e r on behalf of Xeric regarding 

other compliance issues at. the time? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. You di d t e s t i f y that you r e c a l l e d coming 
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i n to meet wi t h the OCD i n June? 

A. I d i d . 

Q. And you do r e c a l l Mr. C o l l i e r making c e r t a i n 

representations and assurances at that time? 

A. I do. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l i t being s p e c i f i c a l l y o u t l i n e d t h a t 

the OCD was requesting a time l i n e of sor t s , even i f they were 

general dates, f o r tasks to be completed to give us an idea of 

what might be expected i n terms of compliance? 

A. I'm aware that the OCD wanted a w r i t t e n plan of 

action and tha t Mr. C o l l i e r ' s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y at tha t time was 

to stay i n contact w i t h the OCD. 

Q. Okay. And do you r e c a l l -- I t h i n k you spoke 

about t h i s i n your d i r e c t testimony that your r e c o l l e c t i o n was 

that the p r i o r i t y of the OCD was keeping the OCD informed? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you r e c a l l the OCD saying t h a t , as long as 

the OCD was informed as to progress, that the OCD would be 

w i l l i n g to work with you to move things towards compliance? 

A. Yes, that's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What explanation do you have for why there was 

never a time l i n e with actual dates and p r i o r i t i z a t i o n of s i t e s 

submitted to the OCD tha t would have comported with what was 

discussed at that June meeting? 

A. In large p a r t , that was my r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . I t 
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was -- Mr. C o l l i e r had stepped up, and I th i n k we had an 

agreement th a t he wouid be the one to communicate with the OCD. 

That didn't happen. I was i n the f i e l d and was out of the 

touch with what was going on wit h the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e side. We 

were aware t h a t there was a problem, that wasn't g e t t i n g done, 

and the communication -- there was a f a i l u r e there. So th a t ' s 

one of the reasons why Mr. C o l l i e r i s no longer w i t h Xeric. 

Q. And do you r e c a l l t h a t while the #301 p i t was 

discussed, there were other compliance issues that were also 

spoken about? 

A. They were some, but I remember #301 being the 

sore subject: f o r everybody, i t seemed l i k e . 

Q, And you had mentioned th a t you had driven down to 

see Buddy H i l l to t r y and make contact with him? 

A.. I d i d . 

Q, You didn't c a l l ahead to f i n d out what h i s 

schedule was? 

A. I d i d c a l l , and they said they went to a four-day 

work week. I was a c t u a l l y i n Hobbs, and so I went ahead and 

stopped by the o f f i c e . They said he was out. That was on a 

Friday. 

Q. Okay. And then when you went back a second time, 

di d you c a l l ahead? 

A. I d i d not. That was on a Monday, and he was o f f 

again. 

••• 
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Q. In f a c t , t h a t a l l happened w i t h i n the l a s t three 

or four weeks, r i g h t ? 

A. A c t u a l l y , w i t h i n the l a s t month and a h a l f , I 

believe. 

Q. I believe your meeting w i t h Mr. Johnson occurred 

about a week and a h a l f ago? 

A. I met with Mr. Johnson. I met -- the f i r s t time 

I showed up there, there was a new environmental engineer named 

J e f f that had j u s t t r a n s f e r r e d i n t o the f i e l d o f f i c e . I met 

with him, t a l k e d w i t h him. He was one of the few people t h a t 

was there t h a t day. 

The second time I went and Buddy H i l l was not i n , I 

asked to meet wi t h someone else, and Larry Johnson was 

av a i l a b l e , so I met with him. And, yeah, t h a t was about two 

weeks ago. 

Q. But again, none of t h i s occurred w i t h any kind of 

immediacy a f t e r t h a t June meeting? 

A. No. I had c a l l e d Buddy H i l l and ta l k e d t o him 

two or three times on the phone. 

Q. Who prepared the documents th a t were submitted on 

August 15th as the status update and plan of action? 

A. Adam Hir s c h f e l d . 

Q. What explanation do you have f o r why i t took two 

months f o r t h a t report to be submitted? 

A. That, again, was the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of 
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Mr. C o l l i e r . 

Q. Okay. And why are no dates included i n that 

document despite the f a c t t h a t a time frame was something th a t 

was s p e c i f i c a l l y discuss at the June meeting? 

A. I di d n ' t complete t h i s document. Once again, 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d i s here. 

Q. Okay. And there's some reference made i n your 

d i r e c t testimony about the Rule 301 -- I mean, the West Pearl 

Queen 1301 p i t . 

• A. Uh-huh. 

Q. My understanding i s t h a t the report was submitted 

to the OCD. I can't remember the exact date that i t was 

submitted e i t h e r . However, are you aware that i t was 

incomplete at the time that i t was submitted to the OCD? 

A,. No. I'm not aware th a t i t was incomplete. I f 

i t ' s missing one page, I was not aware of t h a t . 

Q„ I d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n to t h a t e x h i b i t . I f you 

look between -- w e l l , look at pages 12 and 14. I think, we've 

since somehow procured page 13, but i t does seem to be the 

beginning of tha t time l i n e . 

A, Okay. So we're missing page 13. I w i l l make 

sure 

Q. Would you say i t ' s a substantive p o r t i o n of the 

report? 

A. Yeah. I t was probably an oversight on the part 
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of Phoenix Environmental. We were -- they were slow about 

g e t t i n g t h i s report to us. And as soon as I got i t i n my 

hands, i t looked complete. I thumbed through i t and drove 

.immediately t o the OCD's o f f i c e and made sure they had i t . So 

I apologize f o r t h a t . 

Q. In f a c t , a l l the work on t h i s s i t e has not been 

completed; i s n ' t that r i g h t ? 

A. I t has been completed. 

Q. Weren't you issued a l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n on 

August 20th f o r a b a r r e l t h a t was s t i l l on the s i t e ? 

A. I'm -- i f there's a chemical b a r r e l out there, i t 

had nothing to do wit h the p i t . 

Q. Okay. But the s i t e i s not completely clean. 

A. The s i t e i s completely -- t h i s p i t has been 

closed. 

Q. Okay. Would i t surprise you to know that there 

i s s t i l l a b a r r e l remaining out there? 

A. No, i t wouldn't. Because there's a chemical drum 

at the w e l l s i t e at the #301. There's a c t u a l l y a #301 w e l l . .. 

There's #301 p i t . We a c t u a l l y that's one of the few wells 

th a t we a c t u a l l y do a corrosion i n h i b i t o r . 

Q. Would i t surprise you to know t h a t there was 

contaminated s o i l discovered at the s i t e t h a t s t i l l needs t o 

be --

A. No. Yeah, tha t would surprise me. 
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Q. Okay. Are you aware that the APD f o r t h i s s i t e 

s p e c i f i c a l l y required that the reseeding be done only a f t e r the 

surface owner approved the reseeding mixture t o be used? 

A. No. I wasn't aware that the surface owner needed 

to approve anything. 

Q. And to your knowledge, was the surface owner 

involved i n the reseeding t h a t was done at t h i s s i t e ? 

A. To my knowledge, I do not know. 

Q. Okay. I ' l l represent to you tha t they were not, 

and i f that i s --

A. Who i s the surface owner there? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, I th i n k that counsel i s 

s t a r t i n g to t e s t i f y , and I don't want to raise an ob j e c t i o n 

j u s t to -- i t seems l i k e she's s t a r t i n g t o t e s t i f y and I'm a 

l i t t l e concerned about t h a t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s p o i n t , I would l i k e to 

c l a r i f y , since he has t e s t i f i e d that t h i s s i t e i s completed. 

There are, apparently, f a c t s t h a t he's not aware of. I was not 

prepared to address t h i s p i t because t h i s well i s not a part of 

t h i s case. I , t h e r e f o r e , do not have e x h i b i t s prepared to 

present on t h i s . However, I am e n t i t l e d to impeach t h i s 

witness. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, I j u s t ask that they be 

questions and not statements by counsel. 

MR. BROOKS: Well, the would-it-surprise-you-to-know 
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i s a s t a n d a r d a t t o r n e y ' s t r i c k . I t ' s not r e a l l y p r o p e r . But 

i t has beer, used by many masters of the a r t . So I w i l l leave 

i t t o the Examiner's d i s c r e t i o n . 

MS. ALTOMARE: We're s t r a y i n g away from t h a t , Mr. 

Examiner. That's what my concern i s . 

MR. BROOKS: I w i l l l e a v e i t t o the Examiner's 

d i s c r e t i o n . I don't t h i n k t h e r e ' s any g r e a t harm done when 

we're not b e f o r e a j u r y . 

s u r p r i s e d t h a t we're spending so much time t a l k i n g about #301 

when i t ' s not i n my case f o l d e r . 

s a i d , you do understand a t the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d 

i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case t h a t X e r i c O i l and Gas had 80 w e l l s on 

OCD's i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t showing up as bei n g i n v i o l a t i o n o f 

Rule 201? 

MR. WARNELL: I see no harm. ALthough, I am a b i t 

(By Ms. A l t o m a r e ) : A l l r i g h t . W e l l , t h a t b e i n g 

A. I knew t h e r e were s e v e r a l . I d i d n ' t know e x a c t l y 

how many. 

Q- And X e r i c has a t o t a l o f 110 w e l l s ; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. And yon know t h a t now t h a t number has a c t u a l l y 

r i s e n t o 82. 

A. On non-compliant w e l l s ? 

Q. I n v i o l a t i o n o f 201? 
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1 A. That don't surprise me. 

2 Q. You understand th a t at the time the a p p l i c a t i o n 

3 was f i l e d , Xeric has 69 wells f o r which i t owed single w e l l 

4 f i n a n c i a l as surances? 

5 A. Could you repeat the question, please? 

6 Q. At the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , Xeric had 

7 69 wells coming up as i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 101(D). 

8 A. 101(B) being what? 

9 Q. Owing single well f i n a n c i a l assurances. 

10 A. Okay. I'm not aware on the exact amount of wells 

11 and how many they had bonds on and how many they d i d n ' t . 

12 Q. Are you aware now that t h a t number has ri s e n t o 

13 74? 

14 A. I t has. 

15 Q. Did you hear the testimony e a r l i e r t h i s morning 

1 6 about the t o t a l amount of single w e l l f i n a n c i a l assurances owed 

17 by Xeric O i l and Gas? 

18 A. Yes . 

1 9 0- Was that number a surprise to you? 

20 A. Yes, i t was. 

21 Q • Have you or anyone i n your company, to your 

22 knowledge, c ontacted the f i n a n c i a l assurance bonding 

23 administrator to --

24 A. That again, would be Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . 

25 Q. Okay. 
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MS. ALTOMARE: I th i n k , apparently, the rest of these 

issues are issues I need to address with the other witness, so 

I ' l l pass the witness. 

MP. WARNELL: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

MR. WARNELL: No f u r t h e r questions? The witness may 

step down, and you may c a l l your next witness. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. I'd l i k e to c a l l Adam 

Hir s c h f e l d , please? 

MR. WARNELL: I'm sorry. I fo r g o t to ask Mr. Brooks. 

MR. BROOKS: Well, I was going to ask a couple of 

questions here. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Who owns Xeric at the present time? 

A. Myself and Adam Hi r s c h f e l d . 

Q. No one else? 

A. No. 

0. Was Mr. C o l l i e r , was he an owner? 

A. He was. 

Q. And he's sold his i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When you and Mr. Hirschfeld acquired Xeric, d i d 

you make any contact with the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n p r i o r 

to a cquiring Xeric t o determine what i t s r e g u l a t o r y status was 
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1 at that time? 

2 A. We did not. We were informed by the previous 

3 owners, Mr. Cook and Mr. King, and j u s t the discussions we had 

4 wit h them. 

5 Q. Were you informed by them t h a t Xeric was 

6 presently i n v i o l a t i o n of a number of O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n 

/ rules? 

8 A. We were not. 

9 Q. And you d i d not check i t out w i t h the Division? 

10 A. Well, we knew -- we d i d know t h a t there were some 

11 environmental issues; however, we weren't aware th a t the OCD 

12 was demanding a f i n a n c i a l assurance bond. 

13 Q. Did you make any i n v e s t i g a t i o n of the O i l 

14 Conservation Division's rules about a c t i v i t y -- wells and 

15 bonding and so f o r t h -- before you bought t h i s ? 

16 A. The ad m i n i s t r a t i v e part of the company tha t we 

17 were a c t u a l l y running at the time, Mr. C o l l i e r was involved i n 

18 t h a t , and also Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . 

19 Q. And not you? 

20 A. Not me. 

21 Q. Now, A p r i l 15th, i s that the f i r s t contact you 

22 had with the O i l Conservation Division? 

A. A c t u a l l y , i t was tne meeting we had with Mikal, 

24 which was in June the f i r s t time. 

2b Q- So you d i d n ' t have any contact? 
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A. I personally d i d not. 

Q. Okay. And when d i d you become aware that there 

was a requirement f o r f u r n i s h i n g f i n a n c i a l assurance f o r 

i n a c t i v e wells? 

A. That -- I personally -- i t come to my a t t e n t i o n 

j u s t previous to the meeting i n June. 

Q. Okay. So you have known since June th a t there i s 

a requirement to f u r n i s h 

A. I have. 

Q. -- f i n a n c i a l assurance fo r i n a c t i v e wells? 

A. Yes, yes. 

Q. Now, when di d you become aware that there was a 

requirement that wells e i t h e r be returned to production or th a t 

they -- the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n approve the abandonment 

of the w e l l s , temporary abandonment, of the wells? 

A. That would have been i n June also. 

0- Okay. Thank you. That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WARNELL: 

Q. Mr. St. John, I have a question or two, i f you 

don't mind. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Carrying on kind of the same t r a i n of thought 

there with Xeric O i l and Gas Corporation --

A. Yes. 
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Q„ when you bought the company, how many people 

were involved with the company, the previous owners? 

A. The previous owners. 

Q. I've heard three names now; Mr. C o l l i e r , Cook and 

King? 

A. Mr. C o l l i e r o r i g i n a l l y was a p a r t of the new 

ownership of Xeric, which would be myself, Adam Hi r s c h f e l d and 

Tim C o l l i e r . The two previous owners are a c t u a l l y Mr. Joe Cook 

and Mr. Walter King. 

Q. And where d i d they l i v e ? 

A. Mr. King l i v e s i n -- I do not know him very w e l l . 

He l i v e s i n Midland, Texes. Mr. Cook l i v e s i n Odessa, Texas. 

Q. And yet your l e t t e r h e a d has a Houston, Texas, 

address. 

A. The new Xeric, yes. That would be myself and 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . 

Q. Do you l i v e i n Houston? 

A. I l i v e i n Midland, Texas. 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , where does he l i v e ? 

A. He resides i n Ohio r i g h t now. 

Q. Who's i n the Houston o f f i c e ? 

A. We have some a d m i n i s t r a t i v e people that handle, 

a c t u a l l y , account payable, accounts receivable. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d here t h i s morning i n the very 

beginning that you weren't f a m i l i a r with the case. I thought I 
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heard t h a t . 

A. Weren't f a m i l i a r with t h i s case? 

0. Yes. 

A. Just what conversations th a t we had back i n June 

wit h Mikal. My capacity up to t h i s point u n t i l j u s t very 

recently has been at the f i e l d l e v e l . I spend most of my time 

i n the f i e l d doing the hands-on s t u f f . 

Q. I guess where I'm going -- I'm a l i t t l e b i t 

concerned. We spent a l o t of time here t h i s morning t a l k i n g 

about #301 --

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. but yet I'm not sure i f you and I were to s i t 

down and you t o l d me what i t i s that OCD i s r e q u i r i n g ot your 

company, would i t be a c t u a l l y what OCD i s asking for? 

A. I'm not. sure I understand the question. 

Q. You said you weren't f a m i l i a r w i t h the case. Do 

you know what OCD i s asking your company? 

A. They're wanting us to post a f i n a n c i a l assurance 

bond on a l l non-compliant wells; i s that correct? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And you know those wells, they are o u t l i n e d 

s p e c i f i c a l l y ? 

A. Yes, s i r . And we have every i n t e n t i o n of doing 

j u s t exactly we have done, which i s go i n and t e s t the 
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i n t e g r i t y of the w e i l . And one of two t h i n g s w i l l happen a t 

2 t h a t p o i n t : We w i l l e i t h e r put the w e l l on p r o d u c t i o n and 

3 pr o d u c i n q i t , or we w i l l p l u g i t . 

4 Q. You mentioned something about an MIT? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. I s t h a t an i n t e g r i t y t e s t ? 

' I A. That i s a mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t on t h e 

8 c a s i n g . 

9 0. A l l r i g h t . Who i s your BLM c o n t a c t , the person 

10 t h a t you deal w i t h ? 

11 A. The BLM c o n t a c t t h a t we're w o r k i n g w i t h r i g h t now 

12 on the Crosby and Gregory lease w i l l be T r i c i a Badbear. 

13 Q. And who i s your OCD c o n t a c t ? 

14 A. OCD c o n t a c t , i t was supposed t o be Buddy H i l l . 

lb I t ' s my u n d e r s t a n d i n g he got a promotion w i t h i n the OCD, so he 

l f w i l l not bo coming t o the f i e l d . I ' d l i k e t o know who t h a t ' s 

17 g o i n g t o bo so I can s t a r t communicating w i t h them. I t h i n k 

18 Buddy has moved up, and I need someone who i s a c t u a l l y a t the 

19 f i e l d l e v e l who I can c o o r d i n a t e w i t h i n the f i e l d . 

20 MR. WARNELL: Can we get Mr. St. John a name and a 

21 c o n t a c t and make sure t h a t they get t o g e t h e r ? 

22 THE WITNESS: I ' d a p p r e c i a t e t h a t . 

23 MR. WARNELL: I have no f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . You may 

24 s t e p down. Thank you. 

2b Ms. Munds-Dry, your next witness? 
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1 MS . MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Adam 

2 H i r s c h f e l d , p l e a s e . 

3 ADAM HIRSCHFELD 

4 a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn under o a t h , 

5 was q u e s t i o n e d and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MS. MUNDS -DRY: 

8 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the r e c o r d . 

9 A. Yes. Adam H i r s c h f e l d . 

10 Q. Where d i d you r e s i d e ? 

11 A. Ohio . 

12 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

13 A. X e r i c O i l and Gas. 

14 Q. And i n what c a p a c i t y ? 

15 A. I run the back o f f i c e , the f i n a n c i a l s i d e o f t h e 

16 b usiness, t h e account payable, the accounts r e c e i v a b l e , and 

17 b a s i c a l l y I work w i t h r e g u l a t o r y f i l i n g s . I have an as s i s t a n t , 

18 and t h a t ' s about i t . 

IS Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e the O i l 

20 C o nservation D i v i s i o n ? 

21 A. No, ma'am. 

22 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t ' s been 

2 3 f i l e d by the D i v i s i o n i n t h i s case? 

24 A. I've become f a m i l i a r w i t h i t . 

25 Q- You mentioned a l i t t l e b i t about your c a p a c i t y . 
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What are your exact r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s f o r Xeric? 

A. My r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s are to b a s i c a l l y make sure 

tha t Xeric i s c a p i t a l i z e d to meet the needs t h a t we have i n the 

f i e l d , whether that be to f i x the weil s , or to pay contractors 

or bond. 

Q. And what other r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s do you have? 

A. We f i l e the C-115s every month. We also take 

care of a l l the monthly r e p o r t i n g and f i n a n c i a l requirements on 

a l l the Rocky Mountain p r o p e r t i e s . When i t comes to buying and 

s e l l i n g p r o p e r t i e s , I ' l l work wi t h counsel t o arrange the 

contracts. B a s i c a l l y , everything that's beyond the f i e l d 

l e v e l , my o f f i c e w i l l handle. 

Q. Anything t h a t Mr. St. John doesn't do? 

A. Anything he doesn't do. 

Q. Okay. 

A. In f a c t , I c a l l him q u i t e o f t e n and discuss what 

has to be done wi t h him. 

Q. What i s the t o t a l amount, as you understand i t , 

f o r posting the single well bonds f o r a l l the wells that are 

the subject of t h i s application? 

A. The most recent l e t t e r that was forwarded to 

me -- I b e l i v e i t was the end of August -- by you, Ocean, I 

believe i t was -- 813,000 i s what I saw on there. 

Q. Would you explain t o the Examiner what sort of 

impact would t h i s have on Xeric's a b i l i t y to continue i t s work 
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on the wells i n New Mexico i f you had to post these bonds? 

A. Yes. At the time, we s t a r t e d t h i s business w i t h 

the qoal of being prudent operators. And, you know, the Rocky 

Mountains was our o r i g i n a l focus -- meaning Colorado, Wyoming 

and Montana. We've spent a s i g n i f i c a n t amount of money 

improving those assets and brin g i n g them i n t o compliance. We 

do have production up i n that area. Our budget i s n ' t 

necessarily as f l u i d as some people's or some operators' 

budgets mignt be, but we do have a budget, and we do have 

cash-flowing assets. 

But. when the a c q u i s i t i o n was made for Xeric, I had 

12 scheduled the finances for improvements i n the f i e l d . I had 

1'j b a s i c a l l y researched the temporarily abandoned wells, the 

14 abandoned w e l l s , the wells that b a s i c a l l y we need to bring back 

15 on to production. We needed to equip them and whatever else 

16 might need to be completed, i n c l u d i n g the environmental issues. 

17 When we had acquired the asset, i t wasn't 

L8 communicated t o us t h a t there was f i n a n c i a l assurance 

19 requirements. At t h a t time, Me..J&.adlL!..t- contacled-JLb^jQCDL. and 

2J3 T ' l l admit t h a t t h a t would be my f a u l t and Mr. C o l l i e r . I 

21 suppose we had grown to t r u s t Joe Cook i n the past, and 

22 whatever he had known in the past about the previous p r o p e r t i e s 

23 we had purchased had come to be the t r u t h . We had understood 

24 th a t t h e i r status at the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n was one t h a t 

25 we had to re t u r n the wells back to production -- which was our 
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! i n t e n t i o n i n buying the property -- and was one tha t the 

2 r e l a t i o n s h i p was good with the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

3 And wit h t h a t , our near-term goals were b r i n g i n g the 

>1 Rocky Mountain p r o p e r t i e s i n t o completion and producing or 

5 s e l l i n g and tocusing operations on New Mexico. 

6 Q. So i s tha t Xeric's focus now, the pro p e r t i e s i n 

7 New Mexico? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. I f you have to post a l l these s i n g l e w e l l bonds 

10 at one time, what does that do to your a b i l i t y to b r i n g the 

11 wells i n t o compliance? 

12 A. I t w i l l c e r t a i n l y delay us a s i g n i f i c a n t amount 

13 of time. 

14 Q. Why i s that? 

15 A. We would have to s e l l a couple of our prope r t i e s 

lb i n the Rocky Mountains to meet the f i n a n c i a l need, or I'd have 

17 to work with counsel to d r a f t p r i v a t e placement and seek some 

IB form of a l t e r n a t i v e f i n a n c i n g . 

19 Q. What kind of time does that take to put tha t i n 

20 place? 

21 A. I t v a r i e s . I t requires a u d i t s . I t requires some 

22 form of r e g i s t r a t i o n w i t h the i n d i v i d u a l states as well as the 

23 s e c u r i t y commission, the SEC. In the past, I've done i t i n a 

24 four-month period. The issue with our current assets would be 

2b included i n audit and evaluation and would r e q u i r e engineering 
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and reserve studies to be updated. We have some older' ones. 

We'd have to get those updated and valued properly. 

At t h i s time, we have an engineer t h a t has done a 

small amount of work f o r us. I t took about s i x weeks to update 

a study he had done f i v e years p r i o r on one property. 

Q. In a d d i t i o n to Xeric being out of compliance, why 

does Xeric want to b r i n g these wells back i n t o production? 

A. We f e e l l i k e i t ' s economically f e a s i b l e , and we 

can b a s i c a l l y get some a d d i t i o n a l primary recovery and move 

i n t o a secondary recovery phase. 

Q. Were you present for Mr. St. John's testimony? 

A. I was. 

Q. Did you prepare what's been marked as E x h i b i t A, 

Xeric's E x h i b i t A, the status update and plan of action? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know why there were not more s p e c i f i c time 

frames put i n the "to be completed actions"? 

A. The issues -- when we had begun to d r a f t that 

report, i n i t i a l l y we had found out that i t wasn't completed by 

our former partner, Mr. C o l l i e r , and I had moved i n to complete 

i t . And that included the environmental issues that we're 

facing on the Crosby and Gregory u n i t s . At t h i s time, j u s t two 

days ago, wc were informed by T r i c i a Badbear that we weren't 

allowed to move any d i r t whatsoever u n t i l we had her approval 

ar, well as the landowners. With that being understood, even 
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1 p r i o r to tha t time on Tuesday of t h i s week, we s t i l l were not 

2 sure when we were going to be aLlowed to move d i r t whatsoever 

3 to take care of the two main environmental issues we were 

4 looking at over there. 

5 In a d d i t i o n to t h a t , i n regards to g e t t i n g the Crosby 

6 and Gregory wells going and a l l the other wells that are 

7 temporarily abandoned or non-compliant, there i s a question of 

8 r i g a v a i l a b i l i t y . In the past, we have had delay time of a 

9 week to two weeks. That's not too bad. But i n that are the 

10 reasons why we didn ' t put any s p e c i f i c dates i n there. And 

11 f i n a l l y , would be that i t was not my primary focus to put dates 

12 i n there, rather to get the plan over saying what we were 

12 t r y i n g t o accomplish, and I know now that I've got to put dates 

14 on i t . So I apologize f o r t h a t . 

15 Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , do have a copy of E x h i b i t C i n 

16 f r o n t of you? 

17 A.. Yes. 

18 Q. Would you i d e n t i f y and review what t h i s packet 

19 is? 

20 A. I t ' s C-103 sundry notices on ten wells between 

21 the Crosby Deep and Gregory leases southwest -- or south of 

22 J a l , New Mexico. I t ' s our i n t e n t t o br i n g these ten wells 

23 e i t h e r back to production or plug and abandon them. Ron r i g h t 

24 now does have Phoenix Environmental g e t t i n g the roads ready and 

25 g e t t i n g the w e l l l o c a t i o n s ready to have a r i g on l o c a t i o n . 
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We're also refurbishing the surface equipment so they can 

handle production hero in the near future, God willing. 

That's what t h i s i s r i g h t here. So i t i s our i n t e n t 

to move ahead on t h i s as soon as the roads are capable of 

handling a r i g . 

Q. Okay. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Do you have an E x h i b i t C fo r us? 

M5. MUNDS-DRY: Oh, I'm sorry. That must be why 1 

have an extra one. Sorry. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

0. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. Hi r s c h f e l d , has t h i s 

been submitted to the OCD yet? 

A. I t has not been submitted t o the OCD yet. 

Q. When do you plan to submit these to the Division? 

A. I was planning t o submit them e i t h e r today or 

before the end of t h i s week. The main issue we had i n 

submitting these was making sure that w i t h i n a 60-day period we 

could, i n f a c t , complete the work on these ten wells. And the 

problem was, u n t i l our v i s i t on l o c a t i o n on Tuesday, I wasn't, 

sure how long i t was going to take us to have the roads 

prepared and ready to go. I was making sure we can get 

everything aligned. I don't thin k -- i f we move ahead, I don't 

want to be f i l i n g any more amended C-103s. I'd l i k e to get i t 

done when we say we're going to get i t done. 

Q. Mr. Hirs c h f e l d , you heard Mr. St. John agree th a t 
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entering i n t o an Agreed Compliance Order f o r i n a c t i v e wells 

would be acceptable to Xeric. Do you agree w i t h that? 

A. I do. 

Q. And would you also be w i l l i n g to s i t down with 

the D i v i s i o n and come up wit h a time l i n e t h a t works f o r both 

of you to b r i n g your wells back i n t o compliance? 

A. Yes. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: With t h a t , we move the admission of 

Ex h i b i t C i n t o evidence. 

MR. WARNELL: Any objections? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No ob j e c t i o n . 

MR. WARNELL: We w i l l admit E x h i b i t C. 

[Respondent's E x h i b i t C admitted i n t o evidence.] 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: And I have nothing f u r t h e r f o r 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . I pass the witness. 

MR. WARNELL: Ms. Altomare? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. What i s your o f f i c i a l t i t l e w i t h Xeric? 

A. I rec e n t l y became president. P r i o r to th a t , I 

was secretary. 

Q. And at what point d i d tha t change occur? 

A. We're s t i l l working through the documents now. 

I've been m a j o r i t y shareholder since we acquired i t . 

Q. And at what point i n time d i d Mr. C o l l i e r 
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o f f i c i a l l y no l o n g e r -- was he o f f i c i a l l y no l o n g e r i n v o l v e d i n 

X e r i c ? 

A. B a s i c a l l y t h e f i r s t week of August. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And that's give or take a few days. 

Q. What steps d i d you take p r i o r t o a c q u i r i n g Xeric 

i n New Mexico to research Lo look ifiLo i t Lo make the decision 

to u l t i m a t e l y become involved w i t h Xeric O i l and Gas? 

A. I had a l l o c a t e d the f i n a n c i a l resources. I 

b a s i c a l l y went through the f i l e boxes. I was looking at o l d 

w e l l logs and reserve studies. I d i d go through the New Mexico 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n website and obtained a l i s t of a l l 

the wells t h a t are being reported on the C-115s showing 

production on c e r t a i n w e l l s . That i s the most th a t was done 

basides._J±Le fJ^eJLd_,Yi^sjLts, obviously^ and__a couple of meaiirrgs 

wixJi„MrJ Cook and Mr. King, 

Q, And so you f a m i l i a r w i t h the OCIL_website? 

K, Very. 

0. Okay. And you reviewed the C-115S,, so you were 

aware t h a t there were a s i g n i f i c a n t number that were not 

rep o r t i n g or were i n a c t i v e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And having access to the OCD website, you 

were not aware of the single w e l l f i n a n c i a l assurance 

requirement? 
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1 A.. I was n o t . 

2 Q. You are aware that that ia due .nojcL, not --

3 A. I am, 

Q. Okay. Ihat regardless„oX Jtfhelher or not VJQU 

5 f i l e d these sundries w i t h an i n t e n t i o n to complete w i t h i n a 

6 certain amount of time., that the bonds for those wells are due 

3 now? 

8 A. I understand that. 

I Q. Okay. Again, you were not present f o r the 

10 A p r i l 15th telephone conference; i s that r i g h t ? 

11 A. The way tha t happened i s -- t h i s question was 

1? asked of Ren. I received a phone c a l l l a t e r that day from 

13 Mr. C o l l i e r . I was l i v i n g i n Colorado at the time, so I j u s t 

14 received a c e l l phone c a l l while I was d r i v i n g . He informed me 

15 t h a t Mr. Cook had received a notice from the OCD on Case 14106 

16 and 14107 l i s t i n g the various issues. 

17 I was not informed th a t there was a c a l l , but i t was 

18 my understanding that document was sent to Mr. Cook's o l d 

19 o f f i c e . And I'd have to go back and look, but I do r e c a l l us 

20 f i l i n g an address change p r i o r t o t h a t . Wnether that's 

2L recorded on your books or not, I'm not sure. But i t gone to 

22 Mr. Coo-c's o f f i c e . Our f i r s t day understanding t h a t there was 

23 a problem was A p r i l 15th. That's my extent of the knowledge. 

2 4 &. Okay. What d i d Mr. C o l l i e r convey t o you 

25 regarding_the conversation that occurred on April 15th2 
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_LO 

A. He d i d not communicate to me tha t he had a 

conversation, but he d i d communicate the xLact t h a t • 

get counsel,, and we needed to move ahead to get things 

So I contacted Holland and Hart and our e x i s t i n g counsel i n 

Denver. That was the step I took. 

Q. Did he discuss w i t h you what the p a r t i c u l a r 

v i o l a t i o n were that were at issue? 

A.. He discussed with me that we ..have wells that were 

9. temporarily abandoned that were not producina and that we had 

to b r i n g _bacJ^m_J^._produatioJl_. At the time, I had taken 

Mr. C o l l i e r ' s word for i t about operating and d r i l l i n g wells in 

New Mexico. 

Qkay., Did he talk to you at a l l about setting up 

a rr.eeting to come in and meet with OCD in person to discuss the 

issues? 

Â  He d i d discuss t h a t w i t h me. He said we'd have 

to have a face-to-face meeting w i t h you. 

Q. Did he t a l k to you about how q u i c k l y that would 

need to happen? 

A. We both agreed i t had to happen very q u i c k l y . 

Q. Do you have any explanation as to why that d i d n ' t 

occur before the next hearing s e t t i n g as was promised? 

A. My only explanation i s that we had at the time 

three partners. And Mr. C o l l i e r , who i s f a m i l i a r with the 

State of New Mexico, was an i n d i v i d u a l that we tr u s t e d , and he 
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1 said he was communicating w i t h you. And we scheduled a meeting 

2 when he said he had spoken with Ms. Munds-Dry about i t . 

3 Q. And you did attend t h a t meeting i n June; i s th a t 

•3 r i g h t ? 

A. I d i d . 

6 So do you r e c a l l the representations made by Mr. 

1 Coll ier-at that meeting.? 

1 A, Absolut ei/y^ 

2 Q. And do you r e c a l l h im t a l k i n g abou t p r o v i d i n g the 

11 arir^iiqiLisJai^ compliance actions.? 

12 A.. I certainly did. 

13 Q.. And do you f e e l t h a t those goals were achieved? 

14 A.. They were not. Tf f a c t , when Ron and I were 

15 to u r i n g locations i n the Rocky Mountains, we had been informed 

16 that they were not f u l f i l l e d . And t h a t i s when I returned back 

17 to my o f f i c e and completed the report to do t h a t . 

18 Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l at t h a t meeting i t being 

19 discussed the importance of about keeping the OCD informed? 

20 A. I understand i t ' s very important. 

21 Q. Okay. 

2 2 A, I do understand that we b a s i c a l l y do nor h a w * 

23 business unless we can .op£xale_j[dl:hin_^ . 

24 Q. And do you r e c a l l t h a t more than j u s t the West 

25 P e a r l Queen #301 p i t v i o l a t i o n s were d i s c u s s e d a t t h a t mee t ing? 
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A. I do. 

Q. That there were issues of the i n a c t i v e wells and 

f i n a n c i a l assurances t h a t were discussed there as well? 

A. But I do r e c a l l i t being a focus on environmental 

issues f i r s t , as you even mentioned at that meeting. 

Q. Okay. You had t e s t i f i e d that you prepared what 

as been marked as your E x h i b i t A, the status update and plan of 

action? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. And you had indicated why there wore no 

dates f o r the "to be completed." 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. You didn't i n d i c a t e an order of p r i o r i t y e i t h e r , 

though; i s n ' t that r i g h t ? 

A. I believe I d i d n ' t . 

Q. Even though you didn't include dates, why didn't 

you include at le a s t a p r i o r i t i z a t i o n of what was to be done? 

A. We b a s i c a l l y planned on doing i t concurrently. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Which i s manageable with the Phoenix 

Environmental contractors and the r i g . 

Q, And as for the completed tasks, you didn't 

include ..da tes there, e i t h e r , r i g h t ? 

A_. dta, I didn't. 

Q. And nothing on here a c t u a l l y involves any of the 
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1 i n a c t i v e wells or the f i n a n c i a l assurance issues at issue i n 

2 t h i s case, r i g h t ? 

3 A. I do not believe so. 

•1 Q. Okay. Why didn ' t you choose to include any of 

b th a t i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r report? 

6 A. We had had problems with those e x i s t i n g wells 

7 th a t we had worked on. They were previou s l y producing w e l l s . 

8 We had had some parted rods and downhole issues on those, so 

9 they nad gone down i n production the p r i o r month. 

It) So our goal was to b a s i c a l l y take the well-equipped 

LL wells and b r i n g them back on to production so they d i d n ' t go 

12 onto the -- loasically, the non-compliance l i s t here i n the 

13 f u t u r e -- and do chemical t e s t s downhole so tha t we could 

14 understand b e t t e r what the formation would .react t o . So as we 

lb moved ahead and d i d equip wells and d i d the mechanical 

16 i n t e q r i t y t e s t s on the wells i n the f u t u r e , not only would we 

17 have the e x i s t i n g wells producing revenue for us, we would also 

13 have the t e s t so we would know b e t t e r how to stimul a t e these 

19 wells and b r i n g them back i n t o production. 

21 knew that this hearing was CQxaliig.jixpL, rlghl? 

22 A. I believe so, yea. 

2 3 Cu So you knew the OCD was concexnetLabout inactive 

24 wells and Ixnajicial 

2 b A_. Absolutely. 
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And you s t i l l 

i n f o r m a t i o n i n t h i a r e p o r t ? 

A. NO, miLVanL, 

Q. Okay. Do you understand that i t i s the p o l i c y of 

the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n t h a t p r i o r to -- even though the 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n i s w i l l i n g to enter i n t o an ACO --

addressing the i n a c t i v e wells, i t ' s the p o l i c y ot the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n that i n order to do t h a t , you must f i r s t 

post any outstanding single w e l l bonds? 

A. I didn't understanding that they had to bo 

completed before we b r i n g these wells back on, no. 

Q. Do you understand the i m p l i c a t i o n s f o r being i n 

v i o l a t i o n of Rule "10 by having i n a c t i v e wells and/or having 

f i n a n c i a l assurance v i o l a t i o n s as f a r as the impact on your 

a b i l i t y to operate? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r with t h a t . 

Q. Do you know that i t can a f f e c t your a b i l i t y to 

get permits to d r i l l new wells? 

A. I'm not understanding -- no. Tt's Rule 40 you're 

t a l k i n g about? 

Q. Right. 

A. No, I'm not f a m i l i a r with Rule 4 0. 

Q. You're not f a m i l i a r w i t h Rule 40? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Does i t change your approach, your analysis i n 
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1 delegation c f finances, f o r instance, knowing that you're not 

2 going to get approved for permits t o d r i l l , a u t h o r i z a t i o n to 

3 transport, those kinds of things unless and u n t i l you post 

4 those bonds? 

5 A. Well, i t would. Our i n t e n t i s not to d r i l l . Our 

6 i n t e n t would be to rework. But i f i t ' s going to prevent us 

from being able t o s e l l o i l -- i s th a t what you're saying? 

8 Q. Any --

9 A. When you say " t r a n s p o r t , " i s t h a t --

10 Q. Any new request f o r allowable a u t h o r i t y t o 

11 tra n s p o r t , any nev; reworking t h a t i s going i n t o a new pool --

12 A. Okay. 

13 Q. so p o t e n t i a l l y depending on what i t i s you're 

14 proposing, p o t e n t i a l l y , yes, i t could a f f e c t . 

15 A. Okay. Well, in tha t case, i t would c e r t a i n l y 

16 change the way we would do i t . The only issue that I'm faced 

17 with i s that I cannot c a l l a r i g up next week i f we post t h i s 

18 bond at the end of the month. 

19 Q. Okay. 

20 AJ TJiaJLis. thejaain issue I've got. AJICL_I understand 

21 there's no l e g a l defense on having ignorance i n going i n t o 

22 t h i s , but that i s the fact right novt. 

23 Q, Have you made any contact w i t h the f i n a n c i a l 

2 5 date? 
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MS. ALTOMARE: I thi n k that's i t . 

MR. WARNELL: Mr. Brooks? 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. 3R00KS: 

Q. WelL, I guess I would ask you the same questions 

basica l l y that I asked Mr. St. Jonn. Did you have any contact 

Aj MO. aix_. 

QJ Did you make.any — did you undexta.ke_any 

research. regardijig_.the O i l Conservation-Division-'-S rules he fore 

you anqii 1 rmti Xerjic? 

A. I did.naiL. 

Canaftrvation Division? 

A, June 13th, that meeting wi t h --

Q. Your answer i s b a s i c a l l y the same as 

Mr. St. John's. Hhen you became_aware of these things was in 

Jjine_2 

A. NOJ I became aware of them on April 15th when 

MXL. C o l l i e r had called me. 

Q. You were not a p a r t i c i p a n t i n the telephone c a l l ? 

A. 1 was not. 

Q. But Mr. C o l l i e r informed you of what? 

A. He had informed me that we had received a l e t t e r 
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from the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n b a s i c a l l y s t a t i n g that we 

2 were going t o have a hearing i n the next -- I can't remember 

3 when the f i r s t hearing was scheduled, but he said that we were 

•1 going to have a hearing i n the next month, I beli e v e . 

Q. Did he inform you that the O i l Conservation 

6 D i v i s i o n was r e q u i r i n g the t i l i n g ot a d d i t i o n a l f i n a n c i a l 

7 assurance? 

8 A. No, he d i d n ' t . 

9 0. When. d i d you. .become aware of . t h a t xequi r ement? 

10 A. This meeting on Jjjne^.3Jth_. 

11 Q. Okay. Did he inform you that the O i l 

12 Conservation D i v i s i o n was r e q u i r i n g that the wells be e i t h e r 

13 tested or returned to ac t i v e status? 

14 A. No, s i r . 

15 Q. And. when did_.yoii become aware of that? 

16 A. B a s i c a l l y r i g h t around June 13th. Rut T can_say 

12 rhnr i r war, di ..cussed t h a t wo were going to have t o b r i n g wel l; 

13 hack to production and or plug them. 

19 Q. That was discussed when? 

21 Q. Okay. 

22 A. And p r i o r to t h a t , though -- being that i t was 

23 our purpose i n purchasing the asset was to do that, very t h i n g . 

2 4 Q. Okay. Thank you. 

25 
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1 EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. WARNELL: 

3 Q. This conference c a l l , now, in A p r i l , was t h a t on 

<] the 15th or the 17th? I've heard several dates. 

5 MS. ALTOMARE: The hearing was schedule for the 17th. 

6 The telephone conference c a l l occurred two days e a r l i e r . 

7 MR. WARNELL: On the 15th, okay. 

8 Q. (By Mr. Warnell): Have you ever been i n t o the 

9 OCD website? 

10 A. I have. 

12 that WH'VH talked about here Lhis morning is Ull the website? 

13. A. Coxxecl, I riiad--SlariedL..lo_ 

14 tJiejii_after QUI, June 13th meeting^ Yes, a i r . 

15 Q. Xeric O i l and Gas Corporation; we ta l k e d about 

1(5 Wyoming, Colorado, Montana, and your Rocky Mountain p r o p e r t i e s 

17 and New Mexico. 

18 A. Yes, s i r . 

19 Q. 1 was t h i n k i n g at. one time Xeric had a c t i v i t y i n 

20 Arkansas and Texas and some other states. What happened to 

21 that property? 

22 A. You know, Xeric has changed hands i n 2306 from --

23 Randall Capps was the previous owner of Xeric. And then he had 

24 sold i t to Joe Cook and Walter King, and they had sold i t to 

25 us. In that sale from Randall Capps to Joe Cook, I r e c a l l from 
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i the records t h a t Mr. Capps had kept some prop e r t i e s back and he 

.2 had separated some assets from i t . So that's my understanding. 

.3 Q. So he's probably s t i l l operating some of that? 

'1 A. He c e r t a i n l y i s , under a company names XOG 

5 Operating. 

(S Q. XOG. How many people are c u r r e n t l y employed by 

7 Xeric O i l and Gas Corporation? 

8 A. Ron and I , and we have a consultant i n Houston 

9 that we b r i n g on. 

10 Q. And the consultant i s at t h i s Memorial Drive 

11 address? 

12 A. Correct. 

1,3 MR. WARNELL: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

14 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

15 MR. WARNELL: You may step down. Thank you. Any 

16 other witnesses? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my case. 

18 MR. WARNELL: Closing statements? 

19 MS. ALTOMARE: 1 j u s t wanted to c l a r i f y the r e l i e f 

20 that we're asking f o r , and that i s that while we are w i l l i n g to 

21 enter i n t o an ACOI because of the sheer number of wells that 

22 are involved, i t i s OCD p o l i c y and, i n t h i s case i n p a r t i c u l a r , 

23 given the amount of bonds and the time that has passed, that 

24 the operator post the bonds f i r s t before they be e l i g i b l e t o 

25 enter i n t o any kind of an ACOI. 
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So we would ask that there be a date s p e c i f i c set f o r 

the posting of the single w e l l f i n a n c i a l assurances on a l l 

wells that they are due on, and tha t t h e r e a f t e r we would be 

w i l l i n g t o negotiate an ACOI to address the i n a c t i v e w e l l s . 

5 And we are asking f o r a penalty to be assessed i n 

6 t h i s case because -- I mean, understand t h a t there was a 

7 f a l l i n g out amongst partners, but they are a company. They 

8 entered i n t o t h i s endeavor together. They knew what they were 

9 g e t t i n g i n t o . The resources were there. They could have 

10 looked up our r u l e s . They could have contacted us. The 

11 f i n a n c i a l assurance o b l i g a t i o n s were p r e - e x i s t i n g t h e i r 

12 a c q u i s i t i o n of the p r o p e r t i e s . We have made good-faith e f f o r t s 

13 to work with them. And they've been aware of these issues f o r 

14 ' some time now. 

15 So we would be asking f o r the penalty to be assessed 

16 i n the amount of $88,000, which i s $1,000 per wel l at the time 

17 of the f i l i n g . 

13 MR. WARNELL: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Warnell, we would say tha t i f we 

20 are required to enter i n t o single w e l l bonds f i r s t before they 

21 are w i l l i n g to enter i n t o an ACOI, which you heard, both 

22 gentlemen t e s t i f i e d t h a t they would be w i l l i n g to enter i n t o 

23 one and tha t they be given time. As Mr. Hi r s c h f e l d t e s t i f i e d , 

24 unfortunately, there's a kink i n t h e i r plans, and they're going 

25 t o need time t o get these i n t o place. And, conversely, that 
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1 means i f they are e n t e r i n g i n t o an Agreed Compliance Order, 

t h e y ' r e g o i n g t o need time a l s o t o r e c a p i t a l i z e t o a c t u a l l y 

3 meet t h e i r promises. 

'1 What t h e y ' r e t r y i n g t o do i s be r e a l i s t i c i n what 

3 tney can acco m p l i s h . They r e a l i z e t h a t t h e r e was a f a i l u r e of 

6 one of the p a r t n e r s and t h a t they have t o make up f o r t h a t , and 

7 th e y have every i n t e n t i o n o f doing t h a t . You have a good 

8 o p e r a t o r here who has f i n a l l y taken over t h i s company and 

9 i n t e n d s t o b r i n g a l l these w e l l s i n t o compliance. We ask you 

10 t o g i v e them time t o do t h a t and t o be rea s o n a b l e . 

11 The c i v i l p e n a l t y i s c e r t a i n l y not reasonable. 

12 They've o n l y owned t h i s company s i n c e March and you're going t o 

13 t r y t o p e n a l i z e them $88,000 f o r t h a t . T h i s i s way out of l i n e 

11 and should not bo c o n s i d e r e d . 

L5 We just, would r e a l l y emphasize t h a t you g i v e them 

16 time t o get a l l of t h e i r a f f a i r s i n o r d e r . They do have every 

17 i n t e n t i o n o f coming i n t o compliance. 

13 MR. WARNELL: Thank you. Mr. Brooks? 

19 MR. BROOKS: Not h i n g . 

20 MR. WARNELL: Are wc goi n g t o take t n i s under 

21 advisement, or do we need t o --

22 MR. BROOKS: I can't t h i n k o f a n y t h i n g e l s e we need 

23 t o do. I b e l i e v e Ms. Altomare has i n d i c a t e d t h a t she has 

21 o f f e r e d a l l t h e evidence she f e e l s i s necessary t o o f f e r . I s 

25 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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MS. ALTOMARE: I believe so. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. 

MR. WARNELL: Okay. That being the case, then, that 

concludes Case No. 14106, and i t w i l l be taken under 

advisement. 

* * * 
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